
� e Cathedral of Calahorra, built on an ancient Ro-
man settlement, has its origins in the 1st century AD, 
when Calagurris was a centre of worship. A� er the 
Muslim invasion, the city became known for its mos-
que, which, following the Reconquista in 1045, was 
transformed into a Christian church by King Sancho 
III of Navarre. � is process marked the beginning 
of the construction of the cathedral we know today. 

During the 13th and 14th centuries, the cathedral un-
derwent Gothic transformations, incorporating ele-
ments such as pointed arches and vaulted ceilings, 
which increased the luminosity of its interior. In the 
16th century, it reached its peak with the creation of 
an impressive Renaissance façade. Today, the cathe-
dral is an important centre of worship and a monu-
ment refl ecting the evolution of architectural styles, 
from Romanesque to Renaissance. With its Renais-
sance and Baroque elements, it has become a cultu-
ral landmark of La Rioja.

� e Cathedral of Calahorra, located by the river, is 
linked to the martyrdom of San Emeterio and San 
Celedonio in the 3rd century. Since the 4th century, 
the site has been a place of pilgrimage. 

A� er the Reconquista in 1045, it was restored, but it 
was in 1484 that the reconstruction works began. In 
the 16th century, a retaining wall was built, and the 
works were completed in 1640 with the ambulatory.

1.- Main façade
It stands out for its sandstone and white alabaster
portal, with a central triumphal arch. On its upper 
fl oors, there are images of the Assumption and Saints 
Emeterio and Celedonio, alongside geometric and 
Marian details. � e Baroque design, with contrasts 
of light and shadow, enhances its majesty and depth, 
creating a play of volume that stands out in the struc-
ture of the Cathedral.

2.- Chapel of St. John the Baptist
On the Gospel side, the Chapel of St. John the Bap-
tist houses a Churrigueresque Baroque altarpiece from 
1717, featuring the Renaissance image of St. John
and a painting of the Baptism of Christ. Its walls are 
adorned with Baroque frescoes by Domingo de Rada.

3.- Baptismal Chapel and Holy Font
In the heart of the Cathedral, to the north, lies the spot 
where, according to tradition, San Emeterio and San 
Celedonio were martyred in the year 298. � is space 
houses the oldest baptismal font in the Diocese, a sym-
bol of Christian life. 

� e font, made of sandstone and octagonal in shape, 
dates back to the 16th century. Its form evokes the bap-
tismal shell, with reliefs depicting Christ’s victory over 
evil, including the pelican symbol, representing Christ 
giving His life. � is place, mentioned by the poet Aure-
lio Prudencio, remains a reference of faith and tradition.

4.- Chapel of the Visitation
It features a Renaissance altarpiece with scenes of 
the Visitation and the Crucifi xion, highlighting 
the fi gure of St. John the Baptist and the Passion 
of Christ. � e doors, painted by Andrés de Melgar, 
and a silver frontal on the altar depicting the As-
sumption of Mary and Saints Emeterio and Cele-
donio complete the work.

5.- St. Jerome’s Gate 
Built in 1520, this Renaissance gate stands out for its 
Gothic entrance and a Mannerist lintel from 1558 fea-
turing both pagan and Christian images. � e Gothic 
tympanum depicts the Virgin and Saints Emeterio 
and Celedonio, while the jambs symbolize the passage 
to divine life. On the second fl oor, the crowned Virgin
and the Calagurrian saints await the purifi ed soul.

6.- Central Nave or Church 
Built in the 15th century in Gothic style, the church 
has a Latin cross layout and three naves. In 1565, 
the head was expanded in Renaissance style, with a 
main chapel and an ambulatory featuring Baroque 
chapels. � e transition from the dark naves to the 
bright main space connects with the open ambula-
tory and its devotional chapels.

7.- Presbytery and Main Altar 
Expanded in the 20th century, it houses the main al-
tar where the relics of Saints Emeterio and Celedo-
nio, the martyred saints, are kept. � e relics are stored 
in two Gothic silver chests, with busts of the martyrs 
and donations of jewels that refl ect popular devotion.

8.- Main Altarpiece and Main Chapel
Reconstructed in 1904 a� er a fi re, the altarpiece honours 
the life of the Virgin Mary, with scenes of the Passion 
of Christ, the Immaculate Conception, the Nativity, 
and the Assumption. Flanking these images are Saints 
Emeterio and Celedonio, Saint Dominic, and Saint Pru-
dencio. � e ensemble is crowned with a Calvary and lu-
minous stained-glass windows. Also notable are the Ba-
roque sculptures by Félix de Camporredondo.

9.- Burial of Bishop Esteban 
In the north aisle, a Gothic sarcophagus houses the re-
mains of Bishop Esteban, who lived in the 13th century.
� e reclining image of the bishop is accompanied by a 
scene on the front, where the � ree Kings worship the 
Baby Jesus, alongside an unidentifi ed episcopal scene.

10.- Chapel of the Infant Jesus
Built in the 16th century, it houses a Baroque altar-
piece by Diego de Camporredondo (18th century). 
In the centre, the Holy Trinity, with the Baby Jes-
us, God the Father, and the Holy Spirit as a dove. 
Flanking the scene are the Virgin Mary, Saint Joseph, 
Saint Joachim, and Saint Anne.

11.- Chapel of the Holy Spirit
Built in the 17th century, it houses a Baroque altar-
piece with the painting of Pentecost, brought from 
Rome in 1632. On the lower section, scenes of the 
Holy Family and the meeting between Jesus and 
John the Baptist. � e vault and side canvases, pain-
ted by Francisco del Plano, depict the Pentecost, the 
Transfi guration, and the Baptism of Christ.

12.- Chapel of the Virgen del Pilar
Built between 1630 and 1640, this chapel honours the 
Virgen del Pilar. Its Baroque altarpiece depicts the 
Arrival of the Virgin on the Pillar, with Saint James 
the Apostle and the martyrs Emeterio and Celedo-
nio. � e wise Bishop Pedro de Lepe is buried here.

13.- Chapel of the Holy Martyrs
Built in the 17th century, this chapel, dedicated to the 
patron saints of the Cathedral, was renovated in the 
18th century with a new Baroque-Rococo altarpiece. 
In the centre, the decapitation of the saints at the site 
of their martyrdom is depicted, surrounded by angels
and clouds symbolising their ascension to heaven and 
victory over death. In the side niches, the images of 
Saint Marcelo and Saint Nona, the parents of the mar-
tyrs, are displayed. � e mural decoration, by José Vejés, 
shows scenes of the martyrs’ suff ering, the apotheosis of 
the saints, and miracles attributed to them. � e wrou-
ght iron gate is in the palatial style of the 18th century, 
in keeping with the artistic style of the time.

14.- Alabaster Apostolate
In the niches decorating the side walls of the choir and 
the chancel, we fi nd a Baroque apostolate, a work by 
Félix de Camporrendondo. Completing the number of 
apostles are the images of Christ the Saviour on the 
central wall of the ambulatory, along with the sculp-
tures of Pope Saint Gregory VII and Saint � omas 
Aquinas in the fi rst lateral niches of the choir.

15.- Chapel of the Christ of the Ball
Built in the 17th century, it houses a Gothic image 
of Christ unnailed, depicting the Descent from the 
Cross. � e 18th-century Baroque altarpiece includes 
the Virgin of Sorrows, Saint John Evangelist, and Mary 
Magdalene. � e railing dates back to the 16th century.

16.- Chapel of Saint Joseph
Built in the 17th century and decorated in the 18th 
century, its Baroque-Rococo altarpiece stands out 
for the image of Saint Joseph with the Child Jesus, a 
work by José Ramírez de Arellano, renowned for its ex-
pressiveness and movement.

17.- Chapel of the Immaculate Conception
Built in the 16th century, its 18th-century Baroque 
altarpiece features the Immaculate Conception, the 
evangelists Saint John and Saint Matthew, and a relief 
of Saint John the Baptist and Jesus. Its patron, Juan 
Miguel Mortela, is buried in front of the chapel.

18.- Chapter House
Built in the 18th century, it consists of two rooms: 
one with twelve 17th-century Flemish paintings de-
picting the Passion of Christ, and the Chapter Hou-
se, dominated by a Baroque crucifi x and works such 
as ”Saint Margaret” by Titian and ”Christ Bound to 
the Column” by Juan Ricci.

19.- Main Sacristy 
Built in the 18th century, the sacristy stands out for 
its rich decoration. It consists of three sections with 
domes painted by Felipe del Plano, representing the 
Virgin and the Trinity. � e central canvas, by José 
Vejés, depicts the Victory of the Virgin. � e walls 
house copies of works by Titian, Murillo, and Zurba-
rán, including a painting by Guido Reni on the mar-
tyrdom of Saints Emeterio and Celedonio.

20.- Goldsmithery 
� e Cathedral houses a remarkable collection of sil-
ver pieces. � e monstrance, possibly the oldest in 
Spain, dates back to 1462 and was donated by Henry 
IV of Castile. Its Gothic design includes lions and a 
kneeling fi gure of the king. Also noteworthy is an 
18th-century Mexican silver Eucharistic Ark, used 
during Holy � ursday ceremonies.

21.- Cloister 
Built in the early 16th century with Gothic and Re-
naissance elements, the Cloister was only partia-
lly completed due to the river’s fl ooding. Accessible 
from various points, it houses religious pieces from 
the 16th to 18th centuries and the coat of arms of 
Bishop Pedro González de Mendoza.

22.- Choir
Located in the centre of the nave, it was cra� ed be-
tween 1532 and 1539 by Flemish sculptors. It features 
a two-tiered choir stall with busts and reliefs of saints, 
including the patron saints Emeterio and Celedonio. 
Originally elevated, it was lowered in 1614 and enclosed 
in 1622 with a grille by Pedro Lazcano. A highlight is 
the gilded Rococo organ from 1756, restored in 1917.

23.- Chapel of Saint Anne 
Built in 1524 in late Gothic style, this chapel is de-
corated with a simple Baroque altarpiece. It depicts 
Saint Anne with the Virgin Mary and Jesus, and in 
the attic are Saint Simon and Saint Jude � addeus. 
� e gilding of the altarpiece and the painting were 
done by José Luzán, Goya’s teacher.

24.- Chapel of Saint Peter 
Built in the early 16th century in late Gothic style, 
this chapel preserves its original structure. � e Re-
naissance-Plateresque altarpiece is a unique work in 
alabaster, dedicated to Saint Peter. It is divided into 
a predella, main body, and attic: the predella features 
the Virgin Mother with the Child, fl anked by Saint 
Stephen, Saint Lawrence, Saint Michael, and Saint Vin-
cent; the main body presents Saint Peter at the centre, 
accompanied by Saint John the Evangelist and Saint Ja-
mes the Greater; the attic shows the Transfi guration 
of Christ and the Calvary. � e altarpiece is believed 
to be the work of Guillén de Holanda or his works-
hop. � e Renaissance grille is also of great value.

25.- Chapel of Saint Lucy
Located on the south wall of the epistle side, this cha-
pel is accessed through a Gothic door leading to the 
Cloister and the tower. � e 18th-century Rococo al-
tarpiece features a Gothic image of Saint Lucy at its 
centre, fl anked by Saint Agatha and Saint Barbara, 
with an unidentifi ed martyr in the attic.

26.- Chapel of Our Lady of the Rosary
Built in the 18th century by the Raón brothers, it fea-
tures a Baroque-Rococo altarpiece by Juan Villanova
(1774). � e images, donated by Bishop Luelmo y Pinto, 
include Our Lady of the Rosary at the centre, fl anked 
by Saint Telmo and Saint Dominic of Guzmán, Domi-
nican saints who promoted the prayer of the Rosary.

27.- Retrochoir or Chapel of the Kings
In front of the main staircase, the Baroque-Rococo altar-
piece (1754) by Manuel Adán and Julián Martínez depicts 
the Adoration of the Magi, with reliefs of Saint Jerome
and fi gures such as Saint Joachim, Saint Anne, Saint Za-
charias, and Saint Elizabeth. � e attic features kings and 
martyrs, including Saint Wenceslaus, King Ferdinand 
III, Christ the King, and Saint Hermenegild.

HISTORY

In ancient Calahorra, during the Roman persecu-
tions, Saint Emeterius and Saint Celedonius rose as 
heroes of unshakable faith. Arrested for refusing to 
renounce their Christianity, they were tortured mer-
cilessly, yet they never yielded. Before the Roman tri-
bunal, they proclaimed: “We do not fear death, for we 
believe in eternal life”. Sentenced to be decapitated, 
they walked serenely towards their fate, knowing 
that their sacrifi ce would endure. 

As their bodies fell, silence enveloped the city. � e 
death of the Holy Martyrs marked the beginning of 
a legend that would transcend the centuries. � eir 
relics were venerated, and their sacrifi ce became a 
symbol of indestructible faith. Today, their story re-
mains alive in the Cathedral of Calahorra, remin-
ding us that faith cannot be extinguished.
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� e tower of the Cathedral has fi ve fl oors and a spire. 
� e fi rst three, undecorated, follow a medieval style 
from the 12th-13th centuries. � e fourth fl oor, with 
Renaissance windows, may have originally served as a 
bell tower. � e fi � h fl oor, similar to the previous one, 
houses the bells and a coat of arms of Bishop Alonso 
de Castilla. � e Baroque-style spire crowns the tower, 
while the angular capitals are from the 19th century. 
Inside, you can fi nd the bells, ratchets used during 
Holy Week, and the city’s historic clock.

Cathedral Cloister Gallery
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